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31 March 2006

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda on 3 February 1994 as an exempted
company under Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 14 April
1994.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are principally
engaged in the design, development, manufacturing and distribution of
electronic components, contract electronic manufacturing services and
consumer electronics, and the manufacturing and distribution of personal
computer and digital products. The Group operates mainly in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and Canada.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$).

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Company’s Board of Directors on 21 July 2006.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”).

convention, as modified by the derivative financial instruments,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the year. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of event and actions,
actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.
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2. EEESHBEHEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(a) mBEE (&) (a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

BT EETEBUBREER The adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
R_ZEERNF=ZA=+—HILHMHE
AREBMRMATEEESHBOHE]
SR AR BRELR - —TF
AEERBFEREEBREELFR

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group adopted the
new/revised HKFRS below, which are relevant to its operations.
The 2005 comparatives have been amended as required, in
accordance with the relevant requirements.

BIEF] °

BEREHENEIR HEBRRER HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
EREQHENFE2R FE HKAS 2 Inventories
EBGHERNETR  HERER HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements
BB QIERESE  gFBR 8 EHE HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
ERRMAREILE Estimates and Errors
BB QI ERE10% HKEBRFHE HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
BB GIERE16%  WE BEREE HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
BEGHERNE TR HE HKAS 17 Leases
BREFHERNE2S EXZHoyE HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates
BB GEERE23Y BEKR HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs
BEBGEERNEUY, HREALZHE HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
BB G ERNE2 HRARBUMBHRE HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
ERETENES AEARAER HKAS 31 Investments in Joint Ventures
BEREFENERS SMIE: RERZ HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and
£ Presentation
BREFENERR SRAN HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
BB GIERET EBERE HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
BB GIEREIY EFBEE HKAS 38 Intangible Assets
BEREFENE SMIE: BRARG HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
= Measurement
EAGERER SREERCAMEAE HKAS 39 Transaction and Initial Recognition of Financial
(BETA) ZBERNISER (Amendment) Assets and Financial Liabilities
BB G EH BERE — B3 HKAS-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
- RBE15%
BB RS EA Fre® — MER IR HKAS-Int 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-
E21% EBEMNKE Depreciated Assets
BB 5 RS 2R E i HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
£ 35
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2. E2HBERE @) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(a) RBEE () (a) Basis of preparation (continued)
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The adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 21, 23,
24, 27, 31, 33 and HKAS-Int 15 and 21 did not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies. In
summary:

— HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interest
and other disclosures;

— HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 23, 27, 31, 33 and HKAS-Int 15
and 21 had no material effect on the Group’s policies;

— HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group’s policy.
The functional currency of each of the consolidated
entities has been re-evaluated based on the guidance to
the revised standard. All the Group entities have the same
functional currency as the presentation currency for
respective entity financial statements; and

— HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related parties
and some other related-party disclosures.

The adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in a change in
the accounting policy relating to the reclassification of land use
rights from property, plant and equipment to operating leases.
The up-front prepayments made for the land use rights are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease or where there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the income statement. In prior years,
the land use rights were accounted for at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
transitional provisions require retrospective application of this
new policy and accordingly the 2005 comparative figures have
reflected the retrospective effect of the change.
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POL'C' ES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

The adoption of HKASs 32, 39 and 39 (Amendment) has resulted
in a change in the accounting policy relating to the recognition,
measurement and classification of financial instruments. The
transitional provisions do not require retrospective application of
this new policy to restate the amounts for pervious years, and in
this connection the Group has chosen not to reflect the effect of
this change in the 2005 comparative figures.

The adoption of HKAS 36, HKAS 38 and HKFRS 3 has resulted
in a change in the accounting policy for goodwill. Until 31 March
2005, goodwill was amortised on a straight-line basis over a
period ranging from 3 to 10 years, and assessed for an indication
of impairment at each balance sheet date. In accordance with
the provisions of HKFRS 3, the Group ceased amortisation of
goodwill from 1 April 2005. Accumulated amortisation as at 31
March 2005 has been eliminated with a corresponding decrease
in the cost of goodwill. From the year ended 31 March 2006 and
onwards, goodwill is tested annually for impairment, as well as
when there is indication of impairment. The Group has reassessed
the useful lives of its intangible assets in accordance with the
provisions of HKAS 38. No adjustment resulted from this
reassessment. The transitional provisions allow retrospective
application of this new policy under certain restricted situations,
which are not applicable to the Group, and accordingly the 2005
comparative figures have not reflected the effect of this change.

All changes in the accounting policies have been made in
accordance with the transition provisions in the respective
standards, wherever applicable. All standards adopted by the
Group require retrospective application other than:

— HKAS 16 — the initial measurement of an item of
property, plant and equipment acquired in an exchange
of assets transaction is accounted at fair value
prospectively only to future transactions;

— HKAS 39 — does not permit to recognise, derecognise
and measure financial assets and liabilities in accordance
with this standard on a retrospective basis; and

— HKFRS 3 — prospectively after the adoption date.
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31 March 2006

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

HR LS

S

The adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

The effect of the changes in accounting policies described above

on the consolidated income statement is as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2006

Decrease/(increase) in
general and administrative
expenses

Increase/(decrease) in
profit attributable to
equity holders of the Group

Increase/(decrease) in basic
earnings per share (HK cents)

Increase/(decrease) in diluted
earnings per share (HK cents)

For the year ended
31 March 2005

EBast

X2 H| 536K

3BHERE B

B35 5 &

EBgs  ERFEIR

#H|532 HKASs 36

EARAE % 3958 and 38
#A|%17%%  HKASs 32 and FLR
HKAS 17 and 39 HKFRS 3 Total
FET FET F#E T FET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
137 (1,349) 2,662 1,450
137 (1,349) 2,662 1,450
0.05 (0.50) 0.98 0.53
0.05 (0.49) 0.97 0.53

Decrease in general and administrative expenses

Increase in basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Increase in diluted earnings per share (HK cents)

G2
FAT7E

HKAS 17
FET
HK$’000

137

Increase in profit attributable to equity holders of the Group

137

0.06

0.06
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

The effect of the changes in accounting policies described above
on the consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

EBg

AR %532

EEET % 39%%
#A1%175%%  HKASs 32
HKAS 17 and 39
F#ET FET

HK$°000 HK$°000

R=ZZFZBXRF=ZA=+—H At31 March 2006

EBE
EREI6K
3BEREE
| E
ZE B £ 357
HKASs 36
and 38
and HEE
HKFRS 3 Total
FETT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

VI - ES R ER D Decrease in property,
plant and equipment (24,461) - - (24,461)
& £ b & 4 3 55 A A2 Increase in leasehold land
3 0 and land use rights 26,093 - - 26,093
EESER Increase in goodwill - - 2,662 2,662
TEeMmIAE(BRE) Increase in derivative financial
3 instruments (liabilities) - (461) - (461)
& EFEE N Increase in net assets 1,632 (461) 2,662 3,833
REBAEFEM, CRD) Increase/(decrease)
in retained earnings 1,632 (461) 2,662 3,833
BB L5 LA
EATH
HKAS 17
FET
HK$’000
R-_ZTEZERFEF=A=+—H At 31 March 2005
Y3 - HEE R ERER LD Decrease in property, plant and equipment (18,349)
T E £t R 1 {F FA A 3L A0 Increase in leasehold land and land use rights 19,844
B EFEE Increase in net assets 1,495

&2 2 5 fn

RABER ST ERFIRE  R-_TTHF
M A — B 2 #4) {# f# % 0 49888,000/8 7T °
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Increase in retained earnings

Note:

1,495

The adoption of HKAS 39 resulted in an increase in opening reserves at
1 April 2005 by approximately HK$888,000.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

mEEE (F) (a)

REMZER - 2ERBHEMERZ
1&&T

AT RETUARNEBIZATER
HHIs AR B te 2 & 5T B s L 12 A8
R A 2 B MM 37 5T 2E R AR B R
ZERERE

£ B H

Effective date

A RIETE BT EREEL
New HKFRS or interpretations

R G EBE 15 (BRI A)

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

BB G EBE 195 (BETA)

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

BB G ERE 215 (BETAX)

HKAS 21 (Amendment)

R GETERFEI9R REE
M EEAFE 45 (BFTA)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 (Amendment)

BB g 5T 2B E 395 (BRI A)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

—ETZ+F—-H—H
1 January 2007
—ETRF-H—H
1 January 2006
—ETRF—A—H
1 January 2006
—ETXRF-H—H

1 January 2006
—ETRF—A—H
1 January 2006

BB T 2RI FE 395 (BT ) —ETRF-H—H
HKAS 39 (Amendment) 1 January 2006
7 Bl 15 3 2 B 655 —ETRF—HA—H

HKFRS 6 1 January 2006
BB SR EERNETHR —TEt+tF—-F—H
HKFRS 7 1 January 2007
BEMBREEL —BEFELR —ETRF-H—H
HKFRS-Int 4 1 January 2006
BB 2R — R ESR —ETZRF—HA—H
HKFRS-Int 5 1 January 2006

EE(BARMBEHRERERZES)
— 2 EE6
HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 1 December 2005
BE (BARMEREREEES)
—RBET R
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7

—TTZRF=H—H
1 March 2006
SEEHRRTHELEENTZERE

EETARANELBEESHEE X
BRVBRAERERNTZE -

—EERF+_HA—H

Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published
standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to
existing standards have been published that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after the effective date as
described below, as follows:

B

Description

BARRE

Capital Disclosure

REEBX SEHAREE

Actuarial gains and losses, group plans and disclosures
RBINETR 2 IREFE

Net investment in a foreign operation

MBEREHN

Financial guarantee contracts
BRASBEARRRMRZZHEREE P2 ST EE
Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast
intragroup transactions
BENAATEAR
The fair value option
BEEIR 2 WRKRTH
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
TR T A - B
Financial instruments: Disclosures
BE-HZHEELEEEE
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
R BERRREEELEL ZER
Rights to interests arising from decommissioning,
restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds
FA2HESEMSEFA BT —BEEERRETFERE

Liabilities arising from participating in a specific market
— waste electrical and electronic equipment

ERBBGTERZE2 FREABBREE N 25
HER B R

Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29
financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of these changes and its management do not expect these
changes to have a significant impact on the Group’s results and

financial position.
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2.

31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Group accounting

(i)

(ii)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 March.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities, including special purpose
entities, over which the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus
expenses directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.
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31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Group accounting (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transactions provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity established under a
contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity which is subject
to a joint control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic activity.

In the consolidated financial statements, investments in
jointly controlled entity are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting and is initially recognised at cost.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses of
jointly controlled entity is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.
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31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Group accounting (continued)

(iii)

Jointly controlled entity (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its jointly controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transactions provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged

in providing products or services that are subject to risks and

returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that are subject

to risks and returns that are different from those of segments

operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement.
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31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to equity
holders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognized in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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2. E2BERE @ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(e) THEER T EAE (e) Leasehold land and land use rights

(M)
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(f)

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and land use
rights are accounted for as operating leases. They are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the periods
of the lease, or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the income statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line/reducing balance method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

L/ES HZE2% Buildings straight-line 2%
R B5 % 1 e i 25 TR (BEE15% Plant and machinery reducing balance 15%
T8 499 2 SR M TR EEE Leasehold improvements,

Bl 10%Z33% furniture and equipment reducing balance 10% to 33%
E TR BEE15%ZE33% Motor vehicles reducing balance 15% to 33%
RARTHE FIAEEE15% Moulds and tooling reducing balance 15%
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Plant and machinery held under finance leases are recorded and
depreciated on the same basis as described above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the income
statement.
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2. EEHTEREBE @ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(f) ME - MeERRE (B) (f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
FREIBDETEEDNRZHE R E Construction-in-progress represents factory premises under
ErR 2B - 30 BARK AR R T8 R B & construction and moulds and toolings under development and is
BARK - KABELH  ZEIHRE stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
FEREMBETEKS - TEILRE includes cost of land, construction expenditure incurred and
NFHE EREIETKESTER interest and other direct costs attributable to the construction.
RBEEEE ° Construction-in-progress is not depreciated, and will be
transferred as fixed assets when construction is completed.
(9) GES (9) Goodwill
PR IE W R AN BB R IR B iR & Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
lﬁgfﬁﬁﬁuﬂl BHBAR HEAE/ over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
EHEENFIHKREEATE assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
ﬁ%l%ﬁ cWEKH B AR RERZEHE Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible
RBOBEREEEREAEN o JEH assets. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
ERNRNEERREHEQAARKRE cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Gains and losses
AN MBEFRREETAR @ Wik on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
AR R REBESR - BEEE goodwill relating to the entity sold.
ERENAFOEARLHEEREEN
HEMEEE -
RREAATNE  BESeIREHRS Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
EEBEN - impairment testing.
(h) EERE (h) Impairment of non-financial assets

REREERFHM EERFTHE
BRLEFRBEETIR  RES
=M HB BN B R REEA
EOR W B B g EE TR A o BIEE
WEE  EAFEMHHBASABRNE
8T B T B 7T B BE)E U 13 s bRk (B 22
T - BEBRREEZ RE{ER
HEMKE SR ZRRIBERAME
R ARESEIAEEZ A FEARK
HEXKAREREEMEZRSER
% o NEFEBER - BESR A &%
RenEReELEN) MRERER
HE -

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
depreciation or amortisation, which are at least tested annually
for impairment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to depreciation or
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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2.

31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U]

1)

(k)

U]

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade receivable and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered as indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of
the provision is recognised in the income statement within general
and administrative expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is transferred from retained profits
to capital redemption reserve.
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31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or financial liability, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising

on investments in subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity,

except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference

is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan
is a retirement benefit scheme under which the Group
pay fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

The contributions are recognised as employment costs
when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses. It recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrued to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised, when there is reasonable

assurance that the company will comply with the conditions
attaching with it and that the grant will be received.
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31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain.

When there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities, net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts
and after elimination of sales within the Group. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a
group entity sells a product to the customer, has delivered
products to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products and collectivity of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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31 March 2006

2. EEESHBEHEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(t) HE (t) Leases (as the lessee)
(i) A E A (i) Finance leases
NEERBR BRI D ER Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
REREZETAEBE 2HL - risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
HIERERLDY - ERNTE for as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
FRigRREEEE AT EK the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of
EEHEESFRZRE (UARIK the leased assets or the present value of the minimum
ERE)BTER BHES lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
HrBLREBERAKER - A the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a
EIHEBHRRERORE & constant rate on the capital balances outstanding. The
REBL RN - BEHEER corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
EENMKRVBERESARS are included in current and non-current liabilities, where
RIERBEERN MBERZ appropriate. The finance charges are charged to the profit
FMEFHNBELHBHANEERE and loss account over the lease periods.
R E K E A RS (E AN
ZBEERE 2L AT HE B
(ii) BEHY (ii) Operating leases
NEEHBEZBRNE S AR Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
EERNELEARME 2HE ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
2 BIIERETRL - RIBEL are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made
BHEAEL 23 (kK EHE under operating leases net of any incentives received
ARl T2 EMER) EHE from the leasing company are charged to the profit and
AAEZZBREEBERTHN loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease
B o periods.
(u) B 2 5K (u) Dividend distribution

RAARBRERFEADIKZBERAE
DA A A HEE RS H R A B
HRERRAE -

AENMBEERARAA 56

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is

recognised as an liability in the Group’s financial statements in

the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
equity holders.
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31 March 2006

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be
a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent assets are
not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and cash flow
and fair value interest-rate risk.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and the current
operations of the Group, no major hedging activities are
undertaken by management.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to United States dollar and Hong Kong dollars. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The Group currently does not hedge
its foreign exchange exposure.

57 AENEEERARAQA
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements

3. BXEERER®

3.1

3.2

MEREREE (&)
(b) =-0::0:

AEFETEEREERAR - F
ERFPHENURSHIALTE
EA/MERNR - TETA
ZR—ARBAERZERNE
EREFZHBHE - REEF]
BEBRRHE ST BHRE2E
& R B o

(c) B EERE

SEEBEERRZRERTMNZ
FERBHBRARES -

(d) BEmER A FEFERR

HRAEETEERGEEE
REE BAKREZBRARE
EREMEBAR LR TS

Sz a4 B 52 88
Z‘v‘:‘x 2

FTEERMIANEEE

H-_ZTTMF—A—HE_TTWNF
+ZA=+—H8 TSI AEET
Al sk EE AT A] - RIEARE
BE2RBREEBBE  £HAFEENFE
REBZRZOERERRS  H
fith - BEARZAETERR (HALSE
ENBRETRTRERS) BIEEA
[EE] - AEBEEZEKAERITESR
TEARR - fTES@MTAEZ W RIE
KREBATABER - AEARN
AR SEYE (MEA) - HRIEEIE
o ZINET A @ 58 (&) BER
N A KRN HAE KRR AR 2 =
B REFDEIABERAMBKRA
RERAET

AENMBEERARAA 58

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

3.

31 March 2006

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group maintains sufficient cash and credit lines to
meet its liquidity requirements.

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank balances
and bank borrowings. This risk is managed through the
maintenance of a proper portfolio of deposit and debt.

Accounting for derivative financial instruments

From 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005, derivative financial
instruments were designated “hedging” or “non-hedging
instruments”. The transactions that, according to the Group’s
policy for risk management, were able to meet the conditions for
hedge accounting were classified as “hedging” transactions; the
others, although set up for the purpose of managing risk (since
the Group’s policy do not permit speculative transactions), had
been designated as “trading”. The Group recorded derivative
financial instruments at cost. The gains and losses on derivative
financial instruments were included in the income statement on
maturity to match the underlying hedged transactions where
relevant. For foreign exchange instruments designated as hedges,
the premium (or discount) representing the difference between
the spot exchange rate at the inception of the contract and the
forward exchange rate was included in the income statement, in
general and administrative expenses, in accordance with the
accrual method.
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3.

31 March 2006

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Accounting for derivative financial instruments (continued)

From 1 April 2005 onwards, derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative instruments
entered into by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-
for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the appropriate
quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask
price.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade
receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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JUDGEMENT

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and are based on

historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the

related actual results. The estimates that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives; actual residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and residual values and therefore depreciation expense in
the future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and land and
land use rights

Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land and land use
rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.



B 7 s 2R BT 5 Notes to the Financial Statements
—EEXNE=FJ=+—f 31 March 2006
4., EESiHEFTFTRAE @ 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

(b)

(c)

M BERRERLIBR LHER
T2 fhEt R E (&)

N E B R A E R E T A
FRIRT B S LB A EEBEK
FTEEHZHR  ((BEFEAEES
BISTRESERRE  AFERTE
KA BERESRERBFHEARS
HEAE MBERERERSESEA
BEMM - Ri)REER SR = TR
EHTERIBFERERNEENZ
BUAEHELERFTH - B FEEEME
B AR R EEFER R ER M
AE RPERE - %Tﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ‘]ﬁﬁﬁ
REFHEIXBEATER TEE
B B IS AR R B K AR ZZD?E:E‘JﬁfE
FHREeREENBEAPFERE - Z
BMEFZRERRINE -

BERE

AEESFELARARETHERRS
ZRE -#RENATE  REEL
BuzaRmeREREEREERNE
FeostEFXEENARERER
Al KIREEER IR BF AN BE
HERP AL F R AR 2GR
fﬁ ° fﬁémugiﬁ\ EU@ %1.{?“&15
AEMBEERARGRRASREREAR
HErREZIERRBERP KR
& BEFE  BRERZHER - H
RERFEANAIHRERER 2ETEKR
KRB AEBERER - B2 E RN K
BE  URBREEXBERBEFER
BRETSER ML o FIERF &R
%ﬁm%ﬁwmixﬁ&&Igﬁm
REHReREFANEATE -

i &1 1 8 (B 45 R

JUDGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and land and
land use rights (continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group’s financial position and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary
to take an impairment charge to the income statement.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment. For the purposes of impairment reviews, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations primarily use
cash flow projections based on five-year financial budgets
approved by management and estimated terminal value at the
end of the five-year period. There are a number of assumptions
and estimates involved in the preparation of cash flow projections
for the period covered by the approved budgets. Key assumptions
include the expected growth in revenues and gross margin, timing
of future capital expenditures, growth rates and selection of
discount rates to reflect the risks involved. Management prepares
the financial budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance
and market development expectations. Judgement is required to
determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections
and changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the impairment
reviews.
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4.

31 March 2006

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

(M)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses the estimations at each balance sheet
date.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on
the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the
current market condition, and requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Management reassesses the provision at each
balance sheet date.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such estimates have
been changed.
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—EENF=HA=+—H 31 March 2006

5. EXFERIHFER 5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
REBEZRERN  BE - LERKHEET The Group is principally engaged in the design, development,
Tt BHNETEXAERBRETFHEBE manufacturing and distribution of electronic components, contract
MEBMBEERCHBEABKREBER - & electronic manufacturing service and consumer electronics, and the
FEANER 2 EEHENAT : manufacturing and distribution of personal computers and digital

products. Turnover recognised are as follows:

—EBEX —TZh
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
& Turnover
BL3E R A6 Manufacturing and distribution of
BFoLaH electronic components 588,641 611,938
AHNEBETEELE Contract electronic manufacturing service
RS R EFIHEEMES and consumer electronics 575,181 439,527
BUHE R A SH B A B R Manufacturing and distribution of personal
HIHER computers and digital products 376,317 174,375
1,540,139 1,225,840

63 AENEEERARAQA
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2006

5. EXBERIBER @ 5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(a) FTERERX (B2 BER : (a) Primary reporting format — business segments:
RZZBERF=A=+—8 " £EH At 31 March 2006, the Group is organised into three main
=EEZEH A EX () EFURHRE business segments: (i) Manufacturing and distribution of electronic
REEH (BN EFEEEERE R components; (i) Contract electronic manufacturing service and
EFHBEMED ; (ii)EHA SR E consumer electronics; and (i) Manufacturing and distribution of
WERRBERLH - personal computers and digital products.
EHETEE
EF et EERBR BAEKRABER
E RS EFHBEREY HEREH
Manufacturing and  Contract electronic ~ Manufacturing and
distribution of manufacturing  distribution of personal
electronic service and computers and B HE £H
components consumer electronics  digital products Eliminations Group
28X -TTH C-B%x -TTH -BEX -TTH -BEX _-TTH C-BEN -%T%T1
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
TEx ThAr TExn FEr  FEr  TAr  FAx FEr TAr  TFAx
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
EXE Turnover
ELIES | External sales 588,641 611,938 575,181 439,527 376,317 174,375
P EHEE Inter-segment sales 5,633 6,702 76 0 - - (5709 (6,792)
594,274 618,640 575,257 439,617 376,317 174,375 (5,709) (6,792) 1,540,139 1,225,840
PHEE Segment results 9,315 9,940 6,378 11,842 5,551 2,985 21,244 24,767
BERK Finance costs (3,769)  (1,194)
JEfE R4 Share of loss of a jointly
EEFE controlled entity (1,638) (19)
MEHEZ Income tax expenses (3,570)  (3,028)
RERF Profit for the year

EEND AR HERTSEER

BR - W AR

BWmERNEH -
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12,267 20,526

Inter-segment sales are accounted for at commercial market

prices and eliminated on consolidation.
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31 March 2006

5, EXBERIBEHR @ 5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(a) FTERERX -—E£KI»BER : (&) (a) Primary reporting format — business segments: (continued)
BHEFEXR
EFnEH EERBR BAEKRABER
HERSH ETHEERER HERSH
Manufacturing and  Contract electronic ~ Manufacturing and
distribution of manufacturing  distribution of personal
electronic service and computers and HHE 8
components consumer electronics  digital products Eliminations Group
—B8X Z%Th -%%5x —ZTh C-%%5x _TTH -%B®Rx C_TTH C-B%x _TT1
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
TEr TEx TExn TErT TEx TErT FEx TEr TEx TExn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BE Assets
PHEE Segment assets 253,899 263,330 321,690 227,708 82,853 77,350 658,442 568,388
ROREE Unallocated assets 26,808 39,242
BEE Total assets 685,250 607,630
a8 Liabilities
PHEE Segment liabilities 105,602 107,080 187,865 116,763 27,080 24,827 320,547 248,620
AORAE Unallocated liabilities 5,286 9,662
BaE Total liabilities 325,833 258,282
HthER Other information
EARRR Capital expenditure 3,056 13,161 28,757 18,321 500 2,047 32,313 33529
REREH Depreciation and
amortisation 5,564 7,368 8,420 6,056 561 1,563 14,545 14,987
ERF#&EE  Reversal of inventory
impairment (12) (301) - 47 - - (12) (254)
[ElE%EEE  Impairment of
FE 8l trade receivables 492 2,872 - - 459 317 951 3,189

DHEEIZEBRAEEZHE Y

X BELERE 75 BUREREZ
BREMMBEERRLERAREE o

SHABIEORARE, 2 HEE
8 RIS HIE - AT R R

EE81E-

EXAERAXBREE WX #Ek
RiE - mEFEEBETREREALR
i EE A Z 0 o

Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill, property, plant and

equipment, inventories, receivables and operating cash, and
mainly exclude investments and certain corporate assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude items
such as taxation, corporate accruals and corporate borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to goodwill and property,
plant and equipment, including additions resulting from
acquisitions through purchases of subsidiaries.
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—EENF=HA=+—H 31 March 2006
5. EXBERIHBER @ 5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(b) RESBRE-WEDFHER : (b) Secondary reporting format — geographical segments:
AEB=FEXZEHBEBMARMEMEE The Group’s three business segments operate in four main
Zihm o DA R RS A & geographical locations. The following table provides an analysis
B EBAUERAIRBEE - of the Group’s turnover, capital expenditure and total assets by

geographical locations.

EER BEARMHX BEE
Turnover Capital expenditure Total assets
=t Y —ZTh —EEAX —ZTh ZEEX —EZTTH
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
FET FET FET TFHET FET TFHET

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

BB RBPBEAE  Hong Kong and

Mainland China 570,209 580,396 31,817 31,482 604,482 530,116
JEEM North America 616,769 372,544 496 2,047 80,768 77,514
BUM Europe 177,563 105,705 - — - —
A& Japan 155,665 152,931 - — - —
H M B R Other Asian countries 19,933 14,264 - — - —
1,540,139 1,225,840 32,313 33,529 685,250 607,630

EEBEEPHEIRE D o Turnover is allocated based on the location of customers.
BERAMAZRBEESREEMER Capital expenditures and total assets are allocated based on the

ERa location of those assets.
6. Hiwz 6. OTHER GAINS

—EER —ZETFh
2006 2005
F#ET F&T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
B WA Interest income 663 134
BT 88 R Government grants 284 236
e WA Rental income 535 386
1,482 756
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

31 March 2006

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses

and general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

Employment costs (including of directors’ emoluments)

(Note 8)

Operating lease rental in respect of land and buildings

Depreciation and amortisation

— owned property, plant and equipment

— property, plant and equipment held

under finance leases

Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant

and equipment — net
Amortisation and impairment loss of goodwill

(Included in general and administrative expenses)
Impairment of trade receivables
Reversal of inventory impairment
Impairment loss of other assets
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments
Auditors’ remuneration

—EEAX —ZEZEH
2006 2005
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
110,867 95,659
7,072 5,473
13,472 10,999
618 2,251

455 395
318 (50)

- 1,342

951 3,189
(12) (254)

340 —
1,349 =
1,638 1,110
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10.
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

31 March 2006

Employment costs including directors’ emoluments, consisted of:

Wages, salaries and allowances
Bonuses
Pension costs —

defined contribution plans
Welfare and benefits

9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on bank loans
wholly repayable within five years
Interest element of finance leases

—EEEAN —ZEZTHh
2006 2005
FET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
90,723 75,868
5,229 4,568
1,377 1,656
13,538 13,567
110,867 95,659
—EER —ZTTHh
2006 2005
FET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
3,451 1,074
318 120
3,769 1,194

10. INCOME TAX

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda. Hong Kong profits
tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong.
Companies established and operate in Mainland China are subject to
Mainland China enterprise income tax at the rate of 33% (2005: 33%).
Companies established and operate in Canada are subject to Canadian
income tax at the rate of 36% (2005: 36%).
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10.

AEBBMBTANERN 2 FEH - BERAAEE
FERERNERNINEFEOREmMEESEZ
EwmbEZRMT

\EF=H=+—H 31 March 2006
4 =

*IJ 1ﬁa‘ﬁ (%) 10. |NCOME TAX (continued)
—EEAX —ZELTH
2006 2005
FHET F&T
HK$’000 HK$’000

EHABIE ¢ Current taxation:
— BBHNEH — Hong Kong profits tax 780 1,341
— R EMER — Mainland China enterprise income tax 1,406 666
— MEXAE — Canada income tax 994 1,136
R IEE R Z 2 Deferred taxation relating to the origination

EEREE and reversal of temporary differences 390 (115)
3,570 3,028

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate
applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

—EEX —TZh

2006 2005

FET FE T

HK$°000 HK$’000

B B4 A1 4 A Profit before income tax 15,837 23,554

BB T E AR 5 BR Tax calculated at the weighted average domestic

B E R 2 i tax rates applicable to profits in the

MEHE respective places/countries 2,427 3,042

BHERMIBAZZE Tax effect of income not subject to tax (1,599) (1,051)
NA B 2 X Tax effect of expenses not deductible

28 for tax 671 1,113

AERZBELEHEE Deferred tax assets not recognised 2,194 1,016

MREAABRR 2 MIAIBIK  Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - (833)

TFERET Over-provision in previous years (123) (259)

HIEX Taxation charge 3,570 3,028

RZTTRF=ZA=+—H BANMETH
BEA153% (ZTTAF + 12.9%) ° HBiE b
ARERAEBNE R AEAR @ BE R E T
N o

For the year ended 31 March 2006, the weighted average applicable tax
rate was 15.3% (2005: 12.9%). The increase is caused by a change in
the distribution of the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
respective countries.
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31 March 2006

11. EERERTHRAEME 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEME (a) Directors’ emoluments
R-EERNFZA=+—HAEES The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 31 March
EEsMET : 2006 is set out below:
BREH®R
Contribution
FERER M1ETEA  to retirement
#¢ Salaries and Discretionary benefit k]
B2 Name of Director Fees  allowances bonuses scheme Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HITES Executive directors
ABREE Mr LAU Tak Wan - 3,510 714 162 4,386
R &+ Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky - 1,201 408 56 1,665
FRELE Mr WAN Chor Fai - 1,300 408 50 1,758
BEEEE Mr MAK Hon Kai, Stanly - 1,300 500 60 1,860
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
2L TE Mr Barry John BUTTIFANT 100 - - - 100
BRERE Mr LIU Ngai Wing 50 - - - 50
BEELE Mr CHOI Yuk Fan 50 - - - 50
200 7,311 2,030 328 9,869
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—EENF=A=+—H 31 March 2006

11. EEREHRTHRAEMES ©» 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) EEMS (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
R-ETERF=ZA=Z+—HBAEEF The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 31 March
EF2MemT 2005 is set out below:

RIKE H5K
Contribution
e k2R ETEL  to retirement
#%  Salaries and  Discretionary benefit BE
EE e Name of Director Fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HITEZ Executive directors
2ABERE Mr LAU Tak Wan — 3,510 560 162 4,232
PR 108 3% 22 & Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky — 1,127 320 52 1,499
FRERE Mr WAN Chor Fai — 1,180 330 50 1,560
BEELE Mr MAK Hon Kai, Stanly - 1,180 330 54 1,564
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
ERNLEE Mr Barry John BUTTIFANT 100 - - - 100
BRELE Mr LIU Ngai Wing (appointed
(R=ZTMEF on 17 September 2004)
AB+EHZMA) - - - - -
BEEELAE Mr CHOI Yuk Fan (appointed
(R=ZTMEF on 17 September 2004)
AB+ERZMA) - - - - -
RBT &4 Mr YUEN Chi Choi (resigned
(R=ZTMEF on 17 September 2004)
AB+EREM) 20 - — — 20
120 6,997 1,540 318 8,975
BEERAFEMERZEEMME No director waived any emoluments during the year (2005: Nil). No
(ZZZRFE: F) RAFEHEX emolument was paid to any directors as inducement to join or as
TS ESEANENEKAEES compensation for loss of office during the year (2005: Nil). No director
BAusHE(CETERFE  T) &SR has been granted or exercised any share option during the year (2005:
MERTRTEEAERE (TSR Nil).
F:F) o
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12.

R MR Notes to the Financial Statements

NE=H=+—H 31 March 2006

EENESRITHAEMS @ 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) EfUEEHAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
AREEEEAREmRETMNALTEIE The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
ME(ZZETRF : WR)ES - = Group for the year include four (2005: four) directors whose
CEHREXHT - B —R(ZTT emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
AF : —R)ERmag AT zBMEe a0 emoluments paid and payable to the remaining one (2005: one)
T individual are as follows:

—EZTX —ZTTH
2006 2005
FET FH#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BERH S R HEMER, Basic salaries and allowances 519 520
BB TEAL Discretionary bonus 67 72
BIKE K Pension scheme contribution 24 24
610 616
B 2 BB mT: The emoluments fell within the following band:
A

Number of individual
ZEEAX —ZTTH
2006 2005
= — 1,000,000/ 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 1 1

During the year, no emolument was paid to the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and other employees) as
inducement to join or as compensation for loss of office (2005:
nil).

PENSION SCHEMES

Hong Kong

The Group has two defined contribution pension schemes, the ORSO
Scheme and the MPF Scheme, for its employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group under independently administered funds.
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12.

NEEFE
B8 (4)

ERERKTET AEERSEE S BIEE
B¥eNBEs2ERESZATAER - EE
ERIEE A AR EREE Z R - REE A
MALERBREGRZEZKE - HE=T
TREZA=+—BULEFE  EZfET &
SR ERAXBREZERNABST BT (ZF
THE BB RZBEERNF=ZA=+—
B EZ:TEIT - ZEREEIRZIBBE
D PR G AR B B R ROK T 2 SRIE 4 /57,0007
T (ZZETHF : 51,00087T) °

ErEeET  AEERSEESFIKESR
BRAAL (RRARFMELBEST G 2 EE)
BoZAHN - AREREREST ZHFB R
FHRKR1,00087T - EREEHA—EN T
BRESAEMRBAEEA - ARAKREEER
FEES -

A B

BRPBEEPIRE - FEATEKREREAE
REBRKET R - EXTEIT - £EEZE
EREEBRAEHMAR (BEFE  RERIE
AD) 5%t - MEBZERSAETRALRLN
HRB8-10% ° B A LN - REDE BRI
NERBRE 2 EEREE - LEREBRIK
AEAREHERARESRHEMERSE -

JIIEPN

AEBREZRNERNEBREMZEZE S « B
TETERENEBRENIN  MINEXREX
RAEE(CPPE AHRRK - HNEZEES A
H24.95%RM - BFEEH=EMRKS A
A% 7 258,000/ 7T (48 E 72 38,600417T) ©
(ZZZRHF : 242,000 T (FHF 37,6000
JT)) e

12.

31 March 2006

PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

Hong Kong (continued)

Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group and its employee make monthly
contribution to the scheme of approximately 5% and 5% respectively, of
the employees’ salary. The unvested benefits of employees who have
terminated employment are utilised by the Group to reduce its future
contributions. The unvested benefit so utilised under the scheme during
the year ended 31 March 2006 amounted to approximately HK$Nil (2005:
HKS$NiIl), and the amount of unvested benefits as at 31 March 2006 that
are available to reduce the Group’s future contributions was
approximately HK$57,000 (2005: HK$51,000).

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Both the Group’s and the employee’s contributions are subjected to a
cap of HK$1,000 per month. The contributions are fully and immediately
vested in the employees.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China. The Group’s employees make monthly contributions to
the plans at approximately 5% of the relevant income (comprising salaries,
allowances and bonus), while the Group makes monthly contribution at
approximately 8 to 10% of such relevant income and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond its contribution.
The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

Canada

The Group is required to make monthly contributions to the National
Canada Pension Plan (CPP) in respect of its employees in Canada based
on the employees’ salaries, with the exceptions of certain excluded
employment and benefits, at a rate of 4.95% of the employees’ salaries
subject to a maximum annual pensionable earnings of HK$258,000
(equivalent to CAN$38,600). (2005: HK$242,000 (equivalent to
CAN$37,600)).
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13. ARlERBFEEAEMLGR 13. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
RARZE=FEAEGRRN - RANRQ A MG The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
MFREBAR233,0008 T (ZEZRHF - BFA the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately
2,721,000/ 7T) ° HK$233,000 (2005: profit of HK$2,721,000).
14. IR E 14. DIVIDENDS
S 1 =13
2006 2005
FETT FAETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BR R HR S ER0.01B T Interim of HK$0.01 (2005: HK$0.01)
—ZTTHF : 0.01%7T) per share 2,727 2,647
B R HR B FR0.0178 T Final of HK$0.01 (2005: HK$0.02)
—ZTTHF : 0.02%7T) per share 2,720 5,451
5,447 8,098

RIBTZERFLA-+ - HBTZEH L &
EEFBRERMBREEEBRO0.0VETT ° LA
BORA S I \MAN A B IRKR P IMERMRE
EEREBE-_TZELEF=A=+—"RBLFE
ERBEBDIK °

15. BERER
(i) =K

EREABFRREFESBERRE
165 FIBR A R 31T & AR i F

15.

At a meeting held on 21 July 2006, the Company’s directors proposed
a final dividend of HK$0.01 per share. This proposed dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements and will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained profits during the year ending
at 31 March 2007.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(i) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

HHYE o average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
—EEX —TZh
2006 2005
XA B AR ER FE 1l 5 A Profit attributable to equity holders
(F%E7x) of the Company (HK$’000) 12,648 20,575
- 58 A% hn ¥ 19 8L Weighted average number of
BTHEE (F) ordinary shares in issue ("000) 272,299 212,827
BRERAF] Basic earnings per share
GBI &%) (HK cents per share) 4.65 9.67
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15. BRER @)

(ii)

#E

AREEREERNE  CHEERTE
AR INHE IS BUEH B - ARER
FEHEBEEN 2 RTTERRERE
BHEHR - FETREEARTERBR
BBEMM 2 RBRZEREEL - B
VARERT R IA R 1B (EER] RA R B R
N2 EBFEFHRE) REZBHN 2 &
B> EXMatEZ2BROBETHERR
RIREREETEM D HT2RMEB
fELL &L o

(i)

31 March 2006

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueq)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all the Company’s outstanding warrants. A calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market
share price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding warrants.
The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the warrants.

—EBEAX —ZETHh
2006 2005
R B AR R FEAG T Profit attributable to equity holders
(F%ET) of the Company (HK$°000) 12,648 20,575
5 AR AN B S 8L Weighted average number of
BITHE (F) ordinary shares in issue ("000) 272,299 212,827
RREZAE (T) Adjustments for warrants (’000) 863 689
508 B A IR hn 4 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
EHEEE (F) for diluted earnings per share (’000) 273,162 213,516
BREERT Diluted earnings per share
B ER) (HK cents per share) 4.63 9.64
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16. EE 16. GOODWILL
=a
Consolidated

ZEEAX —ZTTH

2006 2005

FETT FAETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

B ¥ BR TE B Opening net book amount 24,811 -
NE Additions - 26,153
5 Amortisation - (1,342)
BRBRE FE Closing net book amount 24,811 24,811

a2 E R Impairment tests for goodwill

BEARDBEER EEMERERD DR
RZAEERTELEEM o

BESRZDRMEZ5T :

mex Canada
it Hong Kong

BEAKBERERNERZHBARMESL
TIRBEERBZUEE - DEEEAEE A #H
WIRTEAEM - RAEELBNMNA KOS
RigEAEERE - FESAMNARSRER
A KEBEEERRNEFHRYRES - E2E
REBBEREREH TS ROFNEE R
& o FTERAMITR R BRI L I R RAEE D
EB R TE LR

BEFEDEZIZRKRAT :

E | = Gross margin
R Growth rate
1 = Discount rate
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Goodwill are allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified
according to country/place of operation and business segment.

A segment-level summary of the allocation of goodwill is presented below.

ZE2ERX —Z2%h
2006 2005

BASHER BASH R

BBER YEEM

BUEREH HiE R

E 7 2 # Manufacturing EFEMF  Manufacturing

BERKSH and SUERAEH and

Manufacturing  distribution Manufacturing distribution

and  of personal and of personal

distribution computers distribution computers
of electronic  and digital #E  of electronic and digital ek
components products Total components products Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 24,655 24,655 = 24,655 24,655
156 - 156 156 - 156
156 24,655 24,811 156 24,655 24,811

Goodwill, which arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries in Hong Kong
and Canada, is allocated to the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) identified
according to the nature of business. The recoverable amount of a CGU
is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Management determined
financial budgets based on past performance and its expectations for
the market development. The pre-tax discount rate used reflects specific

risks relating to the relevant segment.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

BEEHE
Hong Kong
operations

7.0%
18.7%
6.2%

mEXEHE
Canada
operations

6.1%
4.6%
6.2%
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—EENF=A=+—H 31 March 2006
17. Y% BB RRE 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
=a Consolidated
REmE
£ HH -
RERRE
Leasehold
BE R improvements,
R#E  furniture, RE  BARIE ERIR
#F  Plantand fixtures and Motor Moulds Construction- Foh
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles and tooling in-progress Total

TET TET TET TETL TETL TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-EENE=A=1-H At 31 March 2004

KA Cost 55,141 88,089 29,793 5,858 5,497 5,141 189,519
RitE Accumulated

depreciation (7,792)  (44814) (14,281 (2,834 (1,663) - (71,384)
REFE Net book amount 47,349 43,275 15,512 3,024 3,834 5,141 118,135

“EZRE=A=1+-H Year ended

BR 31 March 2005
BOREFE Opening net book

amount 47,349 43,275 15,5612 3,024 3,834 5,141 118,135
ERER Exchange difference 46 - 60 1 - - 107
NE Additions - 20,308 3,310 134 1,867 2,216 27,835
FEIRER Transferred from

construction-in-

progress 5,491 - - - - (5,491) -
hEREAR Acquisition of

a subsidiary 828 - 1,077 14 - - 1,919
e Disposals - (104) (95) (130) (64) - (393)
& Depreciation (1,250} (8,554) (2,138) @7) (837) - (13,250}
HARREFE Closing net book

amount 52,464 54,925 17,726 2,572 4,800 1,866 134,353
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—EENF=HA=+—H 31 March 2006
17. U5 - BBERRE @) 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
RamE
%5 HH
RERRE
Leasehold
BERME improvements,
RH#E  furniture, RE HARIA EEIE
#%F  Plantand fixtures and Motor Moulds and Construction- o
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles tooling in-progress Total

TEL TEL TETL TEL TETL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

R-ZEEEFE=A=+-H At 31 March 2005
KA Cost 61,506 107,867 33,936 5,833 7,289 1,866 218,297
2ite Accumulated
depreciation ©042)  (52942)  (16210) (3,261) (2,489) - (83,944)
EEFE Net book amount 52,464 54,925 17,726 2,572 4,800 1,866 134,353
“BEx¥=A=1-H Year ended
BR 31 March 2006
HOREFE Opening net book
amount 52,464 54,925 17,726 2,572 4,800 1,866 134,353
ERZEE Exchange differences 33 33 74 6 - - 146
NE Additions - 8,247 2,203 427 2,588 12,144 25,609
ERIRER Transferred from
construction-
in-progress 6,148 - - - - (6,148) -
irf > Disposals - - (305) (51) - - (356)
HE Depreciation (1,267) (8,984) (2,342) (485) (1,012) - (14,000
HAREERE Closing net
book amount 57,378 54,221 17,356 2,469 6,376 7,862 145,662
R-BERE=A=1-H At 31 March 2006
WA Cost 67,687 116,147 35,644 6,177 9,877 7,862 243,394
2itHE Accumulated
depreciation (10,309) (61,926) (18,288) (3,708) (3,501) - (97,732)
REFE Net book amount 57,378 54,221 17,356 2,469 6,376 7,862 145,662
MECERREGABERN—BRRITHER - Depreciation expense has been included in general and administrative
expenses.
RZTEAF=A=+—H AEEBREHELD At 31 March 2006, the Group had plant and machinery with net book
2 TS 5% e Te B3 BR TE FE 40 & 3,794,000 value of approximately HK$3,794,000 (2005: HK$12,756,000) held under
T (ZZEZTRF : 12,756,000/ T) ° finance leases.
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—EENF=HA=+—H 31 March 2006
18. HEL R tibEHE 18. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS
SEMAE TR T MEREAENESERE The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
A REFEITOT : prepaid operating lease payments and their net book amounts are
analysed as follows:
wma
Consolidated
—EEAX —ZETHh
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
YRR FE Opening net book amount
KM err B E17TR w2 Effect on adoption of HKAS 17 19,844 16,464
NE Additions 6,704 3,775
1 55 Amortisation (455) (395)
HIRBR M F B Closing net book amount 26,093 19,844
H[E S AT Geographical analysis:
wma
Consolidated
fLREFE — 10-50F 2 In Hong Kong — medium-term leases of
R EAFE 49 10 to 50 years 8,352 8,555
IR FE — 10-50F 2 In Mainland China — medium-term land use rights
R HA i R A 10 to 50 years 17,741 11,289
26,093 19,844
BN EERAREEEERRERABERD Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments has been included in
—BERITHER - general and administrative expenses.

79 AENEEERARAQA
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2006

19. MELQARIRE 19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
RARFIZEERRER  WBARKREBEN In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in subsidiaries consisted
™ of:

—EEX =
2006 2005
FET FH#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000

FEEMR®G - Unlisted shares,
R AE at cost 44,715 44,715
i RETFEREE Less: Accumulated impairment losses (10,677) (10,677)
34,038 34,038

REZBERF=ZA=+T—HEARRZEZWE

DA - 2006:
MR ERTR Frfs B #E
5% 37 i B FTELE HERA Aokt
Place of ih 2 Issued and Percentage
AHE incorporation/ Principal place fully paid up of equity
Company establishment of operation share capital interest held
EERERSG —

Shares held directly —

Daiwa BVI Limited

BEEARG —

RBRZES
British Virgin
Islands

Shares held indirectly —

hEEFERAA
Chiasso Inc

BMNEERRAR

Daiwa Associate Ltd

RBRZES
British Virgin
Island

RBRZES
British Virgin
Island

AEMBEEZERERAQA
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EBRLHE
British Virgin
Islands

o

Mainland China

=B
Hong Kong

10,0003 7t
US$10,000

2% T
Uss2

2T
Us$2

100%

100%

100%

The following is a list of the significant subsidiaries as at 31 March

FEXK

Principal activities

REZE

Investment holding

T RE
Sub-contract

manufacturing

REER

Investment holding



Notes to the Financial Statements

19.

MEARRE @

AH

Company

MEFERG — (&)

MR
3% 3 i B
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

Elite Century Holdings Ltd

EEEEBRQA
Cosmos Power Holdings Ltd

FHREFAERADA
Cypress Distribution Limited

HRETFTIEXERAA
Cypress Electronics Limited

afEE(hE) FRAA
Daiwa Associate (China)
Limited

BMEEFRAA

Daiwa Associate (H.K.) Limited

ABMEFHERRAA
Daiwa Distribution Limited

RERZHS
British Virgin
Island

o
Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

o
Hong Kong

19.

TERE

3t B

Principal place
of operation

G
Hong Kong

G
Hong Kong
S

Hong Kong

=8
Hong Kong

o
Hong Kong

o
Hong Kong

o
Hong Kong

BETR
BERA
Issued and
fully paid up
share capital

2,500,000 7T
US$2,500,000

10,000/% 7T
HK$10,000

2% T
HK$2

4% T
HK$4

2B T
HK$2

T mAR100% T

Ordinary shares HK$100

EIRERRLRD
3,000,000/ 7T (K 72 (i)

Non-voting deferred shares
HK$3,000,000 (Note (i)

2B T
HK$2

iR E
Bok
Percentage
of equity
interest held

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

31 March 2006

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

TEXEK

Principal activities

REZER

Investment holding

REZER

Investment holding

REEFHEBE®
Manufacture of
consumer electronics

REEFHEE®
Manufacture of
consumer electronics

FEWE
Property holding

BB RITHR
Management and
administrative service

BF TR
Distribution of electronic

components
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—EENF=HA=+—H 31 March 2006
19. MELQAARE @ 19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (ontinued)
MR, BETR Fiis R
5% 3 i B FTERE #RRA Bot
Place of it 2 Issued and Percentage
AT incorporation/ Principal place fully paid up of equity FTEEKR
Company establishment of operation share capital interest held Principal activities

BMEEERE— (&)

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

AMEREBRDA o o 10,0007 7T 100% REER

Daiwa Electronic Ltd. Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
AMIXEBRDA o B 5,0007% 7T 100% REER

Daiwa Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,000 Investment holding
AMELERR QA BE 5 2B T 100% BEEFTRHEREND
Daiwa Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 BEFEXLEERY

Manufacture of
electronic components
and contract electronic

manufacturing

services
AMBEBR QA o B 1007 7T 100% B4 R B i e 2
Daiwa Microtech Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 Software & technology

development

AMBETEBRRAA o B 10,0007 7T 100%  WHERE

Daiwa Precision Industrial Ltd Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 Procurement of materials

BMERERAF o B 5,0007% 7T 100% REER

Daiwa Resources Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,000 Investment holding

AFMEKARAA BE 5 2% T 100% BRTHRUHES

Daiwa System Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of computer
components

AMEZS (BER)BRRAA BE 5 48T 100%  &REZEK

Daiwa Trading (Guangdong) Ltd Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4 Investment holding
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19.

MEARRE @

AH

Company

MEFERG— (F)

MR
3% 3 i B
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

ABMEXERBHRERRAA
Daiwa Yuen Kwong Plastic
Manufacturing Ltd

Imtec Components Ltd.

AmEXEARAA
Unity Electrical Industrial Ltd.

BEEG= (RR)ERARAR
Unity Precision Electrical Ltd

RIZREETHR AR
Vastpoint Imtec
Electronics Ltd.

EREMEZETRMERA A
Beijing Daiwa Vastpoint
Electronics Technology Ltd.

FEEFCTR)BERAA
China Faith Electronics
(Heyuan) Ltd.

EFETERAA
Cosmos Electronics Ltd.

o
Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

il
Mainland China

Gill=]

Mainland China

A
Mainland China

19.

TERE

3t B

Principal place
of operation

G
Hong Kong

S
Hong Kong
S

Hong Kong

=8
Hong Kong

=8
Hong Kong

il
Mainland China

Gl

Mainland China

il
Mainland China

31 March 2006

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRITR iR E
BERA Aot
Issued and Percentage
fully paid up of equity FEEHK

share capital

4,333,333/ 7T
HK$4,333,333

10,000/% 7T
HK$10,000

2,000,000/ 7T
HK$2,000,000

2B T
HK$2

1007 7T
HK$100

it & 2X500,000 A & ¥
Registered Capital RMB500,000

T & AR572,615% T
Registered Capital
US$572,615

i & A
A R #29,420,000
Registered Capital
RMB29,420,000

interest held

Principal activities

70% KREER

Investment holding

100% REER

Investment holding
95% HERKHERER
Manufacture and trading

of electric wire

100% BREZREE
Trading & manufacture

of electric wire

BEF RS
Distribution of electronic

100%

components

BF TR
Distribution of electronic

100%

components

HEETHEER
Manufacturing of

100%

consumer electronics

100% SBEFEXEEERD

Contract electronic

manufacture service

83 AENEEERARAQA
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements

19.

MEBQRRE @)

AH

Company

BMEEERE— (&)

s
7% 3L i 26
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

afTsRt (L8 BRAR
Daiwa Component (Shanghai)
Ltd.

ettt ORI BERAA
Daiwa Component (Shenzhen)
Ltd.

BMEF OTIR) BRA A
Daiwa Electronics (Heyuan)
Co. Ltd.

AMEXLEX CIR) BRAF
Daiwa Yuen Kwong Industrial
(Heyuan) Ltd.

ABM(ER)ETFIXABRAA
Daiwa (Zhaoqing) Electronics
Industrial Limited

REREFLEBERAQA
Dongguan Wafer Semi-
Conductor Co., Ltd.

BINTHLEFHRA A

&
Mainland China

&
Mainland China

H
Mainland China

H
Mainland China

&
Mainland China

A
Mainland China

A

Guangzhou Qunli Electronics Ltd. Mainland China
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19.

TERE

3t B

Principal place
of operation

A
Mainland China

A
Mainland China

A
Mainland China

A
Mainland China

H
Mainland China

A
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

BERTR
BERAK
Issued and
fully paid up
share capital

#+ fft & 4<200,0003% 7T
Registered Capital
US$2,000,000

= ffft & 78 2,000,0007% 7T
Registered Capital

HK$2,000,000

& A&2,769,418% T

FisRE
Bok
Percentage
of equity
interest held

100%

100%

100%

Registered Capital US$2,769,418

& A572,615% T
Registered Capital
US$572,615

& A
3,384,000% 7T

Registered capital
US$3,384,000

& A
56,200,000/ 7T

Registered capital
HK$56,200,000

£ & 21,310,000 A R ¥

70%

100%

100%

100%

Registered Capital RMB1,310,000

31 March 2006

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ETEEK

Principal activities

BF TR R
Distribution of electronic

components

BF TR R
Distribution of electronic

components

BRNETEXLEERBTR
HEETHEEM

Contract electronic
manufacture service
and manufacture of

consumer electronics

BB 1
Manufacture of plastic
parts

BUEE T U
Manufacture of

electronic components

BUEE T U
Manufacture of electronic

components

BEFEHES
Trading of electronic
components
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19.

MEARRE @

AH

Company

MEFERG— (F)

MR
3% 3 i B
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

A= BEF R AR QA
Unity Industrial (Heyuan) Ltd.

FESw (RE)EFZBERDA
Unity Precision (Dongguan)
Electrical Ltd.

ZEREEF (ORI BERRA
Vastpoint Imtec Electronics
(S2) Ltd.

EEFMEMEFHRAA
Yu Fu Daiwa Electronics Ltd.

EEmMREEFARAA
Yun Fu China Faith Limited

Daiwa Distribution (Alberta) Inc.

Daiwa Distribution (B.C.) Inc.

A
Mainland China

A
Mainland China

A
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

MEREMRES
Alberta, Canada

JIEP N
= b 22

British Columbia,

Canada

19.

TERE

3t B

Principal place
of operation

il
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

mEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

BRITR iR E
BERA Aot
Issued and Percentage
fully paid up of equity

share capital interest held

= it & AX283,933% 7T 100%
Registered Capital US$233,933

& ZX1,477,000% 7T 95%
Registered Capital HK$1,477,000

& it & ZX2,000,000% 7T 100%
Registered Capital HK$2,000,000

&t it & 2X500,000 A R ¥ 100%
Registered Capital RMB500,000

= it & 2X710,000% & 100%
Registered Capital US$710,000

12000 7T 100%
CAN$120

300,0000 7T 100%

CAN$300,000

31 March 2006

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

TEXEK

Principal activities

Manufacture of

electric wire

RETR
Manufacture of

electric wire

BEF R
Distribution of electronic

components

BEF R
Distribution of electronic

components

BUEREHE F et

Manufacture and
trading of electronic
components

ERRETFER

Sales and distribution
of computer goods and
electronic goods

HERDHEME R
BFEM

Sales and distribution of
computer goods and
electronic goods
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19. fIBRARRE @

AH

Company

BMEEERE— (&)

s
7% 3L i 26
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

Daiwa Distribution

(Nova Scotia) Inc.

Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc.

Daiwa Holdings Inc.

Daiwa Precision Industrial Ltd.

Daiwa Semitron Supplies

(Canada) Inc.

Westpac Holdings Inc.

Westpac Technology Inc.

A EERAER A A 86
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IEP NS
MEE

Nova Scotia,
Canada

MERR KA

Ontario, Canada

MERR KA

Ontario, Canada

MERR KA

Ontario, Canada

MERR KA

Ontario, Canada

MERR KA

Ontario, Canada

MERR KA

Ontario, Canada

31 March 2006

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

TERE

3t B

Principal place
of operation

mEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

BERTR
BERAK
Issued and
fully paid up
share capital

1000 7T
CAN$100

300,000/0 7T
CAN$300,000

223,01500 7T
CAN$223,015

10T
CANS$1

1i07T
CANS$1

10T
CANS$1

10T
CANS$1

FisRE
Bok
Percentage
of equity
interest held

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

ETEEK

Principal activities

HERDHEME M
REFES

Sales and distribution of
computer goods and
electronic goods

HERDHE K
ERMRETEM

Sales and distribution
of computer goods
and electronic goods

RAEZER

Investment holding

RAEERK

Investment holding

HE R D HE K
EmkETFEM

Sales and distribution of
computer goods and
electronic goods

BEYME
Property holding

RAEER

Investment holding
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19. MBARKRE @

(U]

(ii)

(i)

ERFAIARBZHBAR - DARBESE
BRASEEEERREAEELREERE
ﬁigﬁffi A AEBAMOEEZH
E ERBHMHBARZER - BF
'R ;E'E'H# RITK °

ERZREERNDEIAREREREBERR

Hb?ﬁ DEE - BRIFEBBRBCRE BN EA
100,000,000,000,0007% 7T -

BE
NGRS

31 March 2006

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

(i)

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Company’s directors and the Group’s management,
principally contributed the results or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would result
in particulars of excessive length.

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of ordinary
shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2006.
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20.

H
all
o
4
il
il
W
BX

20.

31 March 2006

INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY

wa

Consolidated
—EEX —ZEZTh
2006 2005
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
H 9 BR A Opening net book amount 1,639 1,658
FraE B Impairment loss (1,638) —
FEAG 18 2K Share of loss of a joint venture - (19)
HIRBR M F (B Closing net book amount 1 1,639

SEZEATRAPBEKLREEZ AR
BBzt

'

TEME
£ Nature
Name of entity

B M5 T s RINE BB
EEIEBRRDA Sino-Foreign

Daiwa (Southern)
Precision Industrial
Limited

cooperative
joint venture
enterprise

AEzHAREHERRKA+-_A=+T—"BRF
EHEH - AEBER-_ZBZERF=A=+—H
ifZ“ATE TR BEAEER-_TZTREF—

E+ZR=+—HiGukHRE ?ﬁlJ,\E@Z
Tfé/\f’”‘Té%&%lZEiﬁlﬁw bkl
Egmﬁ/\ gi/\qE H ElE gi/\ﬁE ﬁ
=t BHRZMBHRREEEREAEE
NBEZERERBE—_ZTF=A=1—
Bz BBk -
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The Group has interests in the following jointly controlled entity which is
established and operating in Mainland China:

FEXK EEE REE B BESH
Principal Ownership Voting Profit/loss
activities interest power sharing
BEE T 20 60% 60% 60%
Manufacturing of

electronic

components

The above jointly controlled entity adopted 31 December as its financial
year end date. The Group’s consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2006 includes the Group’s share of the results of this
jointly controlled entity for the year from 1 January 2005 to 31 December
2005. The Company’s directors and the Group’s management consider
that there have been no material changes in the financial position in
respect of this jointly controlled entity during the period from 1 January
2006 to 31 March 2006 which would materially affect the view given by
the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006.
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=A=1F—H 31 March 2006
7E 21. INVENTORIES
wa
Consolidated
—EERX —ZTTH
2006 2005
FET FABT
HK$°000 HK$’000
BHmiEE Trading merchandise 79,907 84,337
JR K Raw materials 82,255 80,645
E& Work-in-progress 26,356 14,790
UK Finished goods 13,525 8,374
202,043 188,146
EFKAEAERRBEERE B RHEENX The costs of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of
R R #)1,385,333,0008 L (ZZEZE R F sales in the consolidated income statements amounted to
1,075,131,000% 7T) ° HK$1,385,333,000 (2005: HK$1,075,131,000).
E 17 % 18 /& 3,246,0007% JT (: TETHF Write-down of inventories amounted to HK$3,246,000 (2005:
7,386,000/ L)  EBRIERLRABEREENK HK$7,386,000), which have been included in cost of sales in the
e o consolidated income statements.
ETHEENURITERRES XL HimNE Certain inventories were held under the trust receipts bank loan
(Ktat25) ° arrangements (Note 25).
PE R & BRI 22. TRADE RECEIVABLES
ma
Consolidated
—EER —FTH
2006 2005
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B U & SRR TR Trade receivables 189,179 156,146
g PR HEARTE B 1R 2 R Less: provision for impairment (902) (1,455)
188,277 154,691
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22, FEWEXIRIE &) 22,

JEUE RRIBIRMIATE¥ AR :

T Hong Kong dollars
AR Chinese Renminbi
ET United States dollars
mEeXxT Canadian dollars

FEU & R BRIAEE R X FEBE -

A XRET EEPNERERR  ARAE
BERZEP  EMATRMLE

EEBZRAMNBEERLERS - RE—KH
=T RERTR - BREXRIAZRE ST M

™

LPRATR Less than 60 days
ANTRE—B—-—ThKX 60 days to 119 days
—AZTXRZE 120 days to 365 days

ZAA~NTAERX

HE_ZTZNEZA=1+—HLLFE  £EHK
1$951,000% 7c (ZZ=Z A4 : 3,189,000/ 7T)
FEU S ERTEEE - BREBEE—MRITR
FXH e
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Consolidated

31 March 2006

—zEX —ZTTH
2006 2005
FET FHT
HK$°000 HK$’000
50,963 58,673
34,043 26,257
81,694 49,230
22,479 21,986
189,179 156,146

The carrying values of trade receivables approximate their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivable

as there are a large number of widely dispersed customers.

Majority of the Group’s sales are on open account, with credit terms

generally ranging from 30 days to 60 days. The ageing analysis of trade

receivables was as follows:

—EEX =
2006 2005
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
127,163 108,776
47,170 39,043
14,846 8,327
189,179 156,146

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group recognised a loss of
HK$951,000 (2005: HK$3,189,000) for impairment of its trade receivable.
The loss has been included in general and administrative expenses.
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31 March 2006

23. HEEW IR 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
=a AT

Consolidated Company
—EER —ZETH —EER —ZTZTHh
2006 2005 2006 2005
FET FAETT FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TE K Prepayments 8,113 8,712 - —
HEZS Rental deposits 547 282 - —
JE Ui B4 18 Tax recoverable 582 — = —
H i U R Other receivables 3,642 6,800 214 215
12,884 15,794 214 215

24, BERBEEEEY 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
wE AT

Consolidated Company
—EER —ZTTH —EBEX —ZTTH
2006 2005 2006 2005
FHETT FAETT FHET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R e RIRTHE &% Cash at bank and on hand 83,540 65,037 25 108

ReRREFEMWEUTEEALR : Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following currencies:

&5 AT

Group Company
—EEAX —ZZR —EEAX —ZFTH
2006 2005 2006 2005
FET FE T FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
7T Hong Kong dollars 23,636 23,684 25 108
AR #& Chinese Renminbi 12,687 8,969 - —
EIH United States dollars 35,587 22,050 — —
mEXT Canada dollars 11,034 9,086 - —
E iy Others 596 1,248 — —
83,540 65,037 25 108
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24,

25.

BHERBEESEEY »

SRR RRSEBTNAREZHHES
BAFR o B AR AR EINE 10 K FE R -
142 IR P B R A B SME AR TE -

< H

RITE R
RITEFEER
MEHESEEE

—FR
—FEMFN
“FERAFA

31 March 2006

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB are
deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion of these RMB
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of

funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of

foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government of the

People’s Republic of China.

25. BORROWINGS

Non-current
Bank borrowings
Finance lease liabilities

Current
Bank borrowings
Trust receipts bank loans
Finance lease liabilities

Total borrowings

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

we

Consolidated
—EEX —ZEZh
2006 2005
FET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
5,000 10,000
1,196 4,258
8196 14258
16,667 11,000
67,144 41,876
3,242 4,617
__________ 87,053 oo 271488
93,249 71,751

we

Consolidated
—EEX —ZEZh
2006 2005
FET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
87,053 57,493
6,196 13,341
- 917
93,249 71,751

ENBEZRARA A
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25. BITER @

fEE RN TE®AERK :

RITEMN
REHEAR

B IR E R AT EEE -

SECHMEBEEEZAMAOT

=EREERES
— &R
—F=F
—F=FEFRF

o RREE X

31 March 2006

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
®E
Consolidated
—EER —FTR
2006 2005
FHET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
Hong Kong dollars 89,125 43,328
United States dollars 4,124 28,423
93,249 71,751

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

RE
Consolidated
ZEERN e
2006 2005
T P BT E
HK$ uUss HK$ Us$
Bank borrowings 5.70% 5.21% 1.11% 2.47%
Finance lease liabilities 4.77% - 1.98% =

The carrying amounts of all borrowings approximate their fair value.

The Group's finance lease obligations were analysed as follows:

RE
Consolidated

—EEX —Z=Zh

2006 2005

FET FE T

HK$°000 HK$°000

Total minimum lease payments

— Within one year 3,394 4,748
— In the second year 1,211 3,394
— In the third to fifth year - 921
4,605 9,063
Less: Future finance charges (167) (188)
4,438 8,875
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—EENF=A=+—H 31 March 2006
/= .
25. |BITER @) 25. BORROWINGS (continueq)
BEHEBBZRES AT - The present value of finance lease liabilities is analysed as follows:
—2Ex —zT5
2006 2005
FET FE&T
HK$°000 HK$’000
—F R Within one year 3,242 4,617
54 In the second year 1,196 3,341
F=FFEZFRF In the third to fifth year - 917
4,438 8,875
26. ESEXRE 26. TRADE PAYABLES
ABOEEEZNHRBRALERS - BRE— Payment terms with majority suppliers are on open account. Certain
BEH=TRKEASTX- suppliers grant credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days.
ERAEERBZRESTAOT : The ageing analysis of trade payables was as follows:
=a
Consolidated
—EER —ZETTH
2006 2005
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
PRI+ XR Less than 60 days 174,146 132,893
ANTRE—B—-—ThKX 60 days to 119 days 19,044 21,079
—BZTRE=ZBATAX 120 days to 365 days 10,202 7,851
203,392 161,823
FEREERERATEEAR : Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
we
Consolidated
—EEX —ZTR
2006 2005
FET F&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT Hong Kong dollars 60,931 51,766
AR Chinese Renminbi 19,157 15,193
ESpTH United States dollars 98,886 71,619
mEXT Canadian dollars 23,223 22,283
EH A Others 1,195 962
203,392 161,823
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s g-A=+ 31 March 2006
27. HtiFE BRI 27. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

=e AT
Consolidated Company

—EEX —ZZR —EBEAX —ZFTH

2006 2005 2006 2005

FET FE T FET FE T

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

e RICAEE Provision for salaries and bonus 9,026 9,720 - —

T8 U 3% Receipts in advance 2,204 653 = =

EEEE A Accrued operating expenses 6,837 5,777 - —

& {5 354 78 Tax payable - 1,339 2 168
fBE T AR Payable for purchase of land

AN use rights 130 756 - —

H fth & £ 5K Other payables 283 6 257 614

18,480 18,251 259 782

28. TE€mMIA 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

—EERX

2006

FET

HK$’000

HNEE E R & #) Forward foreign exchange contracts 461

RZZBZERFE=RA=+—0 SEEHREHR As at 31 March 2006, the Group had outstanding forward foreign

B35 T INEE Y Mi\,i’] CcHRIZTTEARF=A=+ currency contracts to purchase US Dollars. The notional principal

—H™ é%’ﬁﬂ%zs 400,000 7T amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at

M
-\
o
.S
- N
OJ \tm
kﬂ\m

31 March 2006 were HK$23,400,000 (2005: HK$137,442,000).
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29. EEFFBH

31 March 2006

29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

EBEERMNIFEEHBEEEHERBERIEA Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
B - MELERIE S &R — B BRE - BilA] legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
BEEMSEREERREERSEHAGBEHEK liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
HeomABEEABRRLEZESR  BEEE 2K authority. The balances shown in the consolidated balance sheet are,
HEMT - after appropriate offsetting, as follows:
R=HA=+-—H
At 31 March
—EER —ZETTH
2006 2005
FET FE&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FELERRIBE E - Deferred income tax assets,

+ =@ A &Y E to be recovered after more than 12 months 1,088 2,265
BELERIBAE - Deferred income tax liabilities,

Rt+-_@EARR&RBE to be settled after more than 12 months 4,559 5,346
EERIE A EFE Net deferred income tax liabilities (3,471) (3,081)
EEHBEEERBEBEFELZLHHNTIETEM The net movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, which
BORBIT arise from accelerated/decelerated tax depreciation, are as follow:

we

Consolidated
—EEX —ZTR
2006 2005
FET FH#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
i) Beginning of the year (3,081) (3,634)
U B BT B8 A ®) (M aE34(c)) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34(c)) - 438
FEER (XH) Lk (Charged)/credited to income statement (Note 10) (390) 115
B R End of the year (3,471) (3,081)
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29.

ELEMREBH @

IRIE R TE & EE Y P FE AR B B 76 7 &5 T 38 3R R 2R
JEER i ) B4 3R T Bh P 45 88 2 B IE B 1R 1B RE
TR o 7N 5= B3 4 5 B 4B 40745 71.26,794,0007%8 7T
(ZZZTRF : 516,438,000/ 7T) fERIE LT
FHRIBEEXNBS5,962,0008 T (Z T HF :
75 #53,797,0007T + It & Fi 18 &5 18 A 75 B 15 2R
HERBRA - R=ZTEAF=A=1+—8 -
R IEEE 515,515,000/ 7T © SR =T —
—E[BiW - MER 11,279,000 7T 7] £ R 2 4
IR 2 BEBA °

FRNRELERBREERABZZE (EFR K
MR 2 AEERIKSHAT) BT ¢

29.

31 March 2006

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$5,962,000 (2005: HK$3,797,000) in respect of
accumulated losses amounting to HK$26,794,000 (2005:
HK$16,438,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable
income. As at 31 March 2006, accumulated tax loss amounting to
HK$15,515,000 is expiring in 2011, while the remaining balance of
HK$11,279,000 can be carried forward indefinitely to offset against future
taxable income.

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to offsetting of
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction is as follows:

HiE
ELERBEE Deferred tax assets Tax losses
—EBEX —TZh
2006 2005
FET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
)| Beginning of year 2,754 2,611
W BE M B8 A &) Acquisition of subsidiaries — 438
EiEER I Charged to profit and loss account (1,135) (295)
Hi R End of year 1,619 2,754
R B 18 7 B
BEEFELE Deferred tax liabilities Accelerated tax depreciation
—EBEX —TZh
2006 2005
FET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
)| Beginning of year 5,835 6,245
EiEERTE Credited to profit and loss account (745) (410)
Hi R End of year 5,090 5,835
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31 March 2006

30. BA&X — XAQF 30. SHARE CAPITAL — COMPANY
ZEERX —ZTh
2006 2005

B EE BB

Number of Number of

shares shares
R FET T FHETL
’000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$’000

VETE — Authorised —

TREFRMEECI10E T Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000

BEIRAE - Issued and fully paid —

TRk EREME010ET Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
H 4] Beginning of year 265,963 26,596 158,810 15,881
R 15 217 B N PR Issue of shares upon a rights issue

(Kt at() (Note(i)) - - 105,873 10,587
W 1n BT R 1T E R IR HE AL Issue of shares upon exercise

(Hf % i) of warrants (Note(ii)) 6,746 675 1,280 128

BB (K 2% (i) Purchase of own shares (Note(ii)) (534) (53) = =

HR End of year 272,175 27,218 265,963 26,596

Haz - Notes:

0] R-ZEERAF=ZA=+—8 ' ARETH (i) As at 31 March 2005, the Company undertook a rights issue in the
B BRRERSHFARERZRMHERE K proportion of 2 rights shares for every 3 ordinary shares held at a
A% A% 17 2 tb 51847 105,873,066% I {H0.10 subscription price of HK$0.45 per share. In this connection, rights to
B IR AR o Al R F AR 0.457% JT e & subscribe 105,873,066 shares of HK$0.10 each, at HK$0.45 each were
105,873,066 X EEO0. 10 T 2 i 1H - R=F issued. In September 2004, the rights were utilised to subscribe for
ZHFENA  BEERTHELESRD 105,873,066 shares for approximately HK$47,643,000.

47,643,000/ T °

(i) R-EEAXE=A=+—BI-#/H (ii) During the year ended 31 March 2008, 6,746,799 (2005: 1,279,706)
6,746,799 A M EIF (Z T T | F warrants were utilised to subscribe for 6,746,799 (2005: 1,279,706)
1,279,706) B 2 #B17{E + & A 7RHE6,746,799 shares, at a subscription price of HK$0.50 per share (Note 32).

R (ZEZRHE ¢ 1,279,706) * REESR
B RR0.50% 7T (Af7#32) -

(iii) REZZETRNFE=ZA=+—HILHH  A6E (iif) During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company purchased 534,000
[@534,0000% B fn (ZEERE « T) - £4 shares (2005: Nil) for approximately HK$268,000. These shares were
268,000/ 7T ° = LR M EABREEUHE subsequently cancelled.

BERGOHE BRBORRE
Number of Price per share
shares FfiE=E A REE
repurchased Highest Lowest

R 5 HHE Date of repurchase ’000 HK$ HK$

—EERF—HA January 2006 48 0.485 0.460

—EERF_A February 2006 130 0.500 0.490

—EERF=HA March 2006 356 0.530 0.495

534 0.530 0.460
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31.

32.

BEBKRE

ARBREUE BB E AR RAEER
ZEE (BRARBZATES) KHBREN
BRBARR RN - HRZAARBERE
BIRAREMERERTEBEREMET L
Bin) 30% "R - ZERETEE K HAAR
ZEREET  AO)ARBRROEBRERT
BZWKmE: ((1ZERTEREANEERS
BARRBD 2 P mE « S(i)A 2R
ZHEHEZRKROIGET  ZEURSERE -

HE_TTRF=ZRA=+—0 A2 FAHEL
EERECEZRF T - RN_TTRF=
A=1t—8 AARHETEBERE(ZTE
HFE ) RIBERF=ZA=+—0" %
BEARTREZBERE(ZZZHF : ) -

NEE - 6,746, 79RRBRIEZ (ZEZTAF :
1,279,706) B 2 & 17E + 7] RKE6,746,799
D (ZEZHE ¢ 1,279,706) * BREL
3,373,000/ L (ZEZTHE : 640,000/87T) °

=5 R REHE

B¥EH
Date of grant

TEEH

Exercise period

ZTTREZA
—+=H
23 February 2005

ke Sl ey o =)

25 February 2005
to 24 February 2008

RZZFZRF=A=T—HIFE  ARET
728,843,209 R HEFE + AL FAR0.507E T
REERE—REREEI0BITZEG ° R
BERITN _-_ZEZRF_A_+HBE_ZTT
NEZAZ+HEATTE -

2T \E-A=+HA

31.

32.

31 March 2006

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted an employee share option scheme, under
which it may grant options to employees (including executive directors
of the Company) subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time excluding for
this purpose any shares issued upon exercise of employee share options.
The exercise price will be determined by the Company’s board of
directors and shall at least be the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant of the options, (i) an average
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options, and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each.

No share options were granted during the year ended 31 March 2006
(2005: nil). No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
March 2006 (2005: nil). No share options were outstanding as at 31
March 2006 (2005: nil).

During the year, 6,746,799 (2005: 1,279,706) warrants were utilised to
subscribe for 6,746,799 shares (2005: 1,279,706) shares in the Company
for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$3,373,000 (2005:
HK$640,000).

WARRANTS
BERETEE HETEHE
REE i) Granted Utilised LS
Subscription Beginning during during End of
price of the year the year the year the year
HK$0.50 27,563,503 — (6,746,799) 20,816,704

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company issued 28,843,209
warrants, each of which can subscribe for 1 share of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.50 each. The warrants are
exercisable from 25 February 2005 to 24 February 2008.
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—EENF=A=+—H 31 March 2006
33. & 33. RESERVES
(a) =e (a) Consolidated
k& it
BEER MEBRE
R 43 % 8 BB Share  Cumulative % Bi#(ii) REEF
Share Capital redemption translation Statutory Retained Foh
premium reserve reserve adjustments  reserve (i) profits Total

TET TET TET TETL TETL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000

R-ZTHEMA—HB -+ At1 April 2005, as

A2 previously reported 199,355 41,201 = 987 90 78,997 320,630
FMERGHEA Effect on adoption

FTHZ Y2 of HKAS 17 - - - - - 1,495 1,495
RZZTRF At 1 April 2005,

MA—BEJ as restated 199,355 41,201 - 987 90 80,492 322,125
FMEAGH Opening adjustment

% B 55 325 |2 39%% on adoption of

) H3 )8 HKAS 32 and 39 - - - - - 888 888

W_ZFFREMA—H - At1 April 2005, after

HAZR opening adjustment 199,355 41,201 - 987 90 81,380 323,013
REZET Profit for the year = = = - - 12,648 12,648
MhNEmE Translation adjustments - - = 990 = = 990
R ET Issue of shares 2,699 - - = = = 2,699
RABTHA Share issue costs (1) - - - - = (1)
B R in Purchase of own shares (215) - 268 - - (268) (215)
®E Dividend - - - - - (8,181) 8,181)
R=BERE At 31 March 2006

=ZA=t-H 201,838 41,201 268 1,977 90 85,579 330,953
BRIOT — Representing —

BRRER S Proposed dividend 2720
Hify Others 82,859

85,579
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33. ﬁ% (#&) 33. RESERVES (continued)

(i) MOBRREBAZREZERRK
8o REEEBRTHBENL2EME

32 -

(ii) FEAECZHBRARZEERTE
¢ ATLABEARBRARZE
B BAEELE BN B

RAEX o

(ii)

(a) wme (&) (a) Consolidated (continued)
E4
SHERE
R4 5B #MAEH  Cumulative T ff 18 (i) REEF
Share Capital translation Statutory Retained @t
premium reserve  adjustments reserve (ii) profits Total
FET FHET FHEIL FHET FHEIL FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEZWEMA—H - At 1April 2004, as

MA 23R previously reported 160,944 41,201 (800) 90 62,794 264,229
FMBE ARG ER Effect on adoption

FITHR LT E of HKAS 17 - - — - 1,358 1,358
RZEZMERMA—A - At 1 April 2004,

L] as restated 160,944 41,201 (800) 90 64,152 265,587
RER R Profit for the year - - - - 20,575 20,575
IEBE Translation adjustments = = 1,787 = = 1,787
2R Issue of shares 37,567 — — = = 37,567
BIRMDKA Share issue cost (598) - - - - (598)
o= Dividend

Be Cash - - - - (2,793) (2,793)

RIREE() Warrants () 1,442 — = = (1,442) =
R-ZEZHfE At 31 March 2005

=HA=+-H 199,355 41,201 987 90 80,492 322,125
AT — Representing —

Bk R B2 Proposed dividend 5,451
i Others 75,041

80,492
Bz - Notes:

Certain shareholders had elected to receive their dividends in
warrants. Refer to note 32 for the details of the warrants issued.

Statutory reserve of a subsidiary in Mainland China can be used
to offset future losses or increase in capital of the subsidiary.

101

AENBEEEZRAER QA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2006

AEMBEEZERERAQA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

33. f@#fEw 33. RESERVES (continued)
(b) VNN (b) Company
B 43 8 [
28
B 12 35 Share BARE() REEA
Share redemption  Contributed Retained Mt
premium reserve surplus (i) profits Total
FE T FET FET FE T FE T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZZETRFMA—H At 1 April 2005 199,355 - 72,309 13,293 284,957
REFE BT Profit for the year - - — 233 233
BT Issue of shares 2,699 — — — 2,699
& 3 B AT R A Share issue costs ) = = — ()
& 17 & 151 Purchase of own shares (215) 268 — (268) (215)
B Dividend = = = (8,181) (8,181)
R-ZBEEXF=A=1+—H At 31 March 2006 201,839 268 72,309 5,077 279,492
MR Representing:
R R B S Proposed dividend 2,720
HAth Others 2,357
5,077
RZZEZENMFMHA—A At 1 April 2004 160,944 - 72,309 14,807 248,060
REFERT Profit for the year - — — 2,721 2,721
BITRR 1D Issue of shares 37,567 — — — 37,567
BITRMD KA Share issue costs (598) — — — (598)
&8 Dividend
Ae Cash - - - (2,793) (2,793)
R E Warrants 1,442 - - (1,442) -
R-ZBERFE=A=1+—H At 31 March 2005 199,355 - 72,309 13,293 284,957
AR - Representing:
¥R K B B Proposed dividend 5,451
H Others 7,842
13,293



B 1% i 3% BT 5 Notes to the Financial Statements
—EENF=ZFA=+—H 31 March 2006
33. ﬁﬁ (#&) 33. RESERVES (continued)

34.

(b)

ma

AR ()

R

0] REBRE-NN—F2FE -
ABBA DK TFRER - ERER
%ﬁﬁ?iﬁﬁ%%'
#RAP DK - W) IRE T BEANHE
BIHZ2EB()VEEFEERE
BEREETRARBRODEEBEZ &

e

REREBR

HRHAR

(b) Company (continued)

Note:

4k,
N BE

(i) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus
is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or make after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the

aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) BREAMBFELCEER 2E S (a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash inflow
RAFEAG R from operating activities
—EER —TTH
2006 2005
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
& B AT Operating profit 21,244 24,767
T — Adjustments for —
M EHA Interest income (663) (134)
M MR RRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,090 13,250
3 J% + b {56 PR A 8 Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights 455 395
BEYE  HER Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and

BIEER S (B) equipment 318 (50)
HMRAEERMER Impairment loss of other long-term assets 340 —
77 B % 7 A /S AR Amortisation and impairment loss of goodwill - 1,342
REIRTS 2 B Provision for long service payments 11 519
SMITETEAFEEIE Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments 1,349 —

37,144 40,089
FEZEm Increase in inventories (13,897) (39,938)
JE Ui & 25 AR TE A N Increase in trade receivables (33,586) (14,324)
ERR - ' RHEAM Decrease in prepayments,

Ji& W SR I8 2 Rk A deposits and other receivables 3,351 1,310
FE 15 & ZE BRI 38 Increase in trade payables 41,569 20,206
JENBEE L@ AR Increase in payable for purchare of land use rights 5,121 —
EEtE R R E A Decrease in accruals and

JE 1~ R IE 2 R other payables (3,479) (2,740)
KEZHESRNFE Net cash inflow from operations 36,223 4,603
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T Z-—F=1 § 31 March 2006
34. MEREMRER @ 34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)
(b) ERERERAN HEWE  #BR (b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposals of
RENMESREHE property, plant and equipment comprise:
—EER —_ZETTH
2006 2005
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRE S E Net book amount 356 393
HEWME WS REE (Loss)/gain on disposals of property,
(BR) &% plant and equipment (318) 50
LEWE - WBEREE Proceeds from disposals of property,
FT 1§ %8 plant and equipment 38 443
(c) Iz B Elite Century Holdings (c) Acquisition of Elite Century Holdings Limited (“Elite”):
Limited ([Elite]) :
RZZEZEWNFAA=+MA - X&EH On 24 September 2004, the Group acquired the entire interest
WiEElitex 28z - WEEEFE in Elite. Details of the net assets acquired are:
ERUNNE
FET
HK$ 000
W& E : Net assets acquired:
M - WS REE Property, plant and equipment 1,919
EEFIEE E Deferred tax assets 438
FE Inventories 16,635
FE W AR TE Trade receivables 19,039
H i fE YR IE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 2,226
HEeERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 10,156
FE & F AR TE Trade payables (22,173)
ERERREM Accruals and
FE 5 FIE other payables (5,917)
22,323
= Goodwill 25,953
BERERKEZAR Purchase consideration and cost of acquisition 48,276
THRAR Satisfied by:
Re Cash 48,276
W EEEIiteEE 2B & Analysis of the net cash outflow in
SRR respect of the acquisition of Elite:
FET
HK$’000
HeRE Cash consideration 48,276
B %)\Zfﬁﬂ Less: Cash and bank balances
EHRBEE acquired (10,156)
IREE M B A R E £ Net cash outflow in respect of
ZHREREFRE the purchase of subsidiaries 38,120
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34. ZEBRERER »

35.

(d)

(e)

WEHBATNER ZBA
fgfmﬁtﬂi+*5 AEE
ﬁ‘a%wzﬂﬁlﬂ A2t

ﬁﬁﬁxiﬁﬂaﬁmmoooﬁén o [d]
= %IL‘AZO0,000?&%F’J"%&%%%
B AR TEDZ= T - &

E\\ ?&fr%

BEREEAEZA ﬂﬁé”ﬁlﬁ%ﬂuzi
AMEREE - WARERE -
FRERS

R-ZEEZRE=ZA=+—HI-HHE -
CSETETBREREYE  HBIRK
#H(ZZZT R4 : 9,800,000 T) °

HAREE
@ R-BBAF=A=+—H A%£H

HBTELEERRT —EHESM
B AR AE24,111,0008 L (ZTZFH
F :24,111,000%8 L) * WEFEERIE
EHTFE350) c AEEEEE B IE
RITEA—MEFTEESEREXRE

o

R=ZFZAFE=A=+—H8 42
%mt\%&ﬁ%“ﬂZﬁEhﬁ%%ﬁ%@%ﬁ
301,740,000 7T (: T T E
166,740,000 7T) e R T NF =
A=+—8 ~$%E§bﬁﬁ2$&1ﬂ§
B 54 53112,922,0008 T ° (=ZF
T FH4F : 86,987,000 7T) °

31 March 2006

34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(continued)

35.

(d)

(e)

Purchase of additional interest in a subsidiary:

Prior to 31 July 2004, the Group had 70% interest in Daiwa
Microtech Limited, which had a shareholders’ deficiency of
HK$511,000. On 31 July 2004, the Group purchased the
remaining 30% interest in Daiwa Microtech Limited from the
minority shareholders at HK$200,000. The whole amount of the
purchase consideration was treated as goodwill as the Group
had taken up the entire shareholders’ deficiency of Daiwa
Microtech Limited prior to the acquisition.

Non-cash transaction:

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group financed
acquisitions of certain property, plant and equipment by new
finance leases of nil (2005: HK$9,800,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

At 31 March 20086, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect
of guarantees issued by banks to the Group’s suppliers
amounting to HK$24,111,000 (2005: HK$24,111,000). This
amount has been included in note 35(b). The Group’s
management anticipates that no material liabilities will arise from
the above guarantees which arose in the ordinary course of

business.

At 31 March 2006, the Company had provided corporate
guarantees in respect of banking facilities of its subsidiaries
totalling of HK$301,740,000 (2005: HK$166,740,000). At 31
March 2006, the Group utilised banking facilities of
HK$112,922,000 (2005: HK$86,987,000).
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AEEE T BRE AR

BERTAE R EH
BEME #Ek

g

(b) EEHEARE

AEEHRINE 2 R ERE A A
e & BHEOWR
REGBEOMMT

E—FN

EFE-FEERAFR
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31 March 2006

36. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

Contracted but not provided for
purchase of property,

wE
Consolidated
—EEN —ZEZFh
2006 2005
FHET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
plant and equipment 3,973 10,723

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group has operating lease commitment in respect of rented

CEACZEEMRD office premises under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The total commitments are analysed as follows:
ma
Consolidated
—EZX —ZEZTh
2006 2005
FHET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Not later than one year 3,325 3,258
Later than one year and not later than five years 7,172 3,629
10,497 6,887
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—EENF=HA=+—H 31 March 2006
37. EBEALTXRS 37. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION

RZZTZTXF=H=1—H " Leading Trade As at 31 March 2006, Leading Trade Limited owns 22.02% (2005:

Limited 52 China Capital Holdings Investment
Limited % 5l # B 2 X 8 22.02% 5 19.17 %%

22.54%) of the Company's shares and China Capital Holdings Investment
Limited owns 19.17% (2005: 19.26%) of the Company's shares. These

o MEAREARARESZFELENRR two companies are under the control of the Company's directors, Mr.

10 3% A LA -

Lau Tak Wan, and Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky.

MAEEFAEFTEERAB ZFEMK B HHA Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or any
e E B ”T%*Emﬁﬂ%ﬂ RRERIR member of its key management personnel or their close family members
Eiﬁ HERRZIANER « AR KEBMZ has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence over

HRAMWEAZE - E‘JE&EE$‘§ Eaf: P the parties in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
Eﬁ)\i cHEAATAIAREASES - where the Group and the parties are subject to common significant

(a)

influence. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

x5 (a)

UTRIEMERZGZH/E - YRE
Bz —RER

ZEHEHSNEG Operating lease rental paid
FEAT to a related party:
361 Alden Inc. 361 Alden Inc.

361 Alden Inc. 2 215 i 5t &£ & PR 51 2%
ZTE(RRARER)XRAHEEA -

et

(i) LENEHSKRETRERE -

Transactions

The following is a summary of significant related party
transactions, which were carried out in the normal course of the
Group's business:

—EER —Z2FH

2006 2005

B &t FET FA&T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
() 1,229 611

361 Alden Inc. is beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Tak Wan and
Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, directors of the Company.

Note:

(i) Operating lease rental expense is determined at rate agreed
mutually between two parties.
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37. BEEEALTRE »
(b) X/ HMEBRARZEE

31 March 2006

37. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION (continueq)

(b) Transaction/balances with subsidiaries

KA F
Company
—EEX =
2006 2005
FET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
[{RPEERNEGTN= -] Balances with subsidiaries
NGRS — Amounts due from subsidiaries 272,692 277,974

MEDRERAEER - 28 RIE

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no specified terms of payment.

(c) FEEERH (c) Key management compensation
—EEN —EZFh
2006 2005
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
e RERL Salaries and allowances 7,311 6,997
TE4L Bonuses 2,030 1,540
BiRE — REHRAKETE] Pension costs — defined contribution plans 328 318
9,669 8,855

38. HEHREHE

$¢. _7?A¢AHF%A %%E$ﬁ
RN 2 AR BAAMBEKASHEDZ
A+ =#ExE - BABNKEAR29,640,000H
(491,992,000 7T) ° Z AR EZ{e ERY\AE
HRTHESRMEEY  HEB4EEREN
RAEE -
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38. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

At the end of June 2006, the Group acquired 52% shareholding of a
company, namely Daiwa Sound Co. Ltd., which is established in Osaka,
Japan. The total consideration for the acquisition is Japanese Yen
29,640,000 (approximately HK$1,992,000). The company engages in the
trading and manufacturing of speaker elements and components. Main
production facilities of the company are located in Mainland China.



